
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

December 3, 2019–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 5, 2019 Rezoning Planning
Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2019.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2019.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map, SSA-2019-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for action, an ordinance amending the Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) of the Comprehensive Plan by Small-Scale Amendment
SSA-2019-03.

 

B.    A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 7, Policy 1.1.1 to Provide for an Amendment to the 2030 Future
Land Use Map
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to DEO, an Ordinance amending the
Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map, for the specific parcel,



Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map, for the specific parcel,
requesting to change the existing FLUM designation from Commercial (C) to
Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
January 7, 2020 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/03/2019  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 5, 2019 Rezoning Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2019.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2019.

Attachments
November 5, 2019 Draft Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
RESUMÉ OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD QUASI-JUDICIAL REZONING

 November 5, 2019

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:32A.M. – 10:49 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Patty Hightower   
  Eric Fears   
  Gary Sammons   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Wayne Briske, Chairman
  William Clay
Staff Present: Allyson Lindsay, Urban Planner II

Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Kia Johnson, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was lead by Eric Fears
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to waive the reading of the legal advertisement 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the September 3, 2019 Rezoning and Regular Planning
Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for October 2019 .

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for November 2019.

  

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the September meeting mintues 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 



  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 
Motion was made to accept the Planning Board meeting packet 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

6.  Quasi-judicial Process Explanation.
 

7.  Public Hearings.
 

A.     Case #: Z-2019-18
Applicant:

Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent
for Knop Family Trust

Address: 5524 Tamarack St & 5504
Bellamy Ave

Property
Size:

1.23 (+/-) acres and 3.96 (+/-)
acres totaling 5.19 (+/-) acres

From: Com, Commercial (25 du/acre)
To: HC/LI-NA, Heavy Commercial

and Light Industrial,
prohibiting the subsequent
establishment of any
microbreweries,
microdistilleries,
microwineries, bars,
nightclubs, or adult
entertainment uses (25
du/acre)

  

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to accept the applicants compatibility analysis and the
HC/LI-NA acknowledgement form 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Eric Fears, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to accept pictures from the applicant 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Jay Ingwell, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to deny the rezoning case 
  Vote: 3 - 2 Approved
 

Voted No: Timothy Pyle 
  Gary Sammons 
Other: Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  William Clay (ABSENT) 

 

8.  Discussion: Tree Ordinance Update.
 

 

9.  Adjournment.
 



1 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  November 25, 2019 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for November 2019 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
November. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition 
has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report 
preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on 
the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 
• Map Amendments: 

 
LSA-2019-02 FLU change from MU-U to I 

09-03-19 PB recommended approval 
10-03-19 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
12-05-19 BCC meeting 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
 
REZONING CASES  

 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2019-15 

09-03-19 PB recommended approval 
12-05-19 BCC meeting 

2. Rezoning Case Z-2019-18 
11-05-19 PB recommended denial 
12-05-19 BCC meeting 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 
PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 
www.myescambia.com 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER 2019 

(Revised 11/25/19)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing T.H. = Transmittal Hearing P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, December 3, 2019  • SSA-2019-03 
• LSA-2019-05 

  

Tuesday, January 7, 2020 • OSP-2019-01 
• OSP-2019-02 

   

Tuesday, February 4, 2020     

Tuesday, March 3, 2020     

Tuesday, April 7, 2020     

Tuesday, May 5, 2020     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current meeting 
agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 12/03/2019  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map; SSA-2019-03
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map,
SSA-2019-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
action, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) of the Comprehensive
Plan by Small-Scale Amendment SSA-2019-03.

BACKGROUND:
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of Escambia County
proposes to change the FLU category of a 0.41 parcel from Commercial (C) to
Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  The parcel is currently developed and surrounded by
residential and non-residential uses. The amendment is proposed to eliminate the
Commercial FLU-based restriction on the subject parcel that allows residential
development only when secondary to commercial development. The proposed FLU
change would expand an existing adjoining area of MU-U to include the parcel.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia M.
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is required by Comprehensive Plan policies to "designate land



The proposed Ordinance is required by Comprehensive Plan policies to "designate land
uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact
development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection
and preservation of rural areas." Amendment of the FLU Map to designate such land
uses requires public hearing review and recommendation by the Board prior to approval
by the BCC.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance amending the FLUM of the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the
Department of State following adoption by the BCC.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the FLUM and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to staff and interested citizens.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Working Case File
Draft Ordinance



 
 
 
 
 

SSA-2019-03 
 

 



BR
UC

E S
T

RHYTHM
ST

MASSACHUSETTS AVE

NEW

WARRINGTON SPUR

VASSAR DR

RUBY
AVE

W FAIRFIELD DR

PEAGLER

PLAZA
RD

MA
TT

H E
W

LN

MISSION
RD

MARKET ST

LO
UI

SIA
N A

DR

HOLLYW
OOD

AVE

N
GREEN

S

BO
RD

ER
 ST

CAREY
AVE

EM
ER

AL
D

AV
E

DOGW

OOD
PL

UTAH CT

KE
LL

 DR

GA
RY

AV
E

W AVERY ST

CU
RT

IS
S

DR

FLE TCHER DR

EDISON DR

UE
Z

EDISON DR

BA
LL

AR
D

ST

PAU L ST

W BLOUNT

N
EW

MEXICO

DR

PEN HAVEN DR

OLD FAIRFIEL D DR

W

FAIRFIELD DR

WABASH AVE
NEW YORK DR

GL
EN

W
O O

D
AV

E

N
49

T H
A V

E

W
EB

ST
ER

DR

GR
AN

DV
IE

W
ST

E MORY D R

MIS
SIS

SIPPI
CIR

NO
RT

HV
IE

W
DR

ALEXANDRIADR

GA
RY

CI
R

GEORGIA DR

46
TH

VE

VAL I AN
T

A V E

W MORENO ST

TRENTON
DR

IM
ON

 C
T

BA
NC

RO
FT

DR

OO
D

W BOBE ST

OA
KW

OO
D

AV
E

TALLADEGA TRL

TO P AZ AVE

HO
LL

YW
OO

D

AV
E

CHEROKEE
TRL MOBILE HWY

MOBILE

HWY

EMBERS
LNDG

N
48

TH
AV

E

BROUSS AR D
ST

NO
RW O O D DR

E CLIO
DR

SOUTH
DAKOTA ST

 ST

LI
ME ST

MOBILE

HWY

TENNES SEE DR

W MALLORY ST

HA

LE

ST

JOHN
ST

BONIFAY PL

NE
VADA

CIR

IVY LN

S

AINT

MAR

K ST

LUKE ST

W HERNANDEZST

W BOBE
ST

W SCOTT ST

W FAIRFIELD
DR

DOG

W
OOD

D R

ST
ET

SON

RD

SUBURBANDR

E
M

AD
IS

O N
DR

WEBB LN

AQUAMARINE
AVE

RE
VE

RE
DR

W
MA

DI
SO

N

DR

GARFIELD DR

SIOUX TRL

N MADISO N DR

KE
AR

NY
DR

PO
TO

MA
C 

DRMCKINLEY DR

BES MA DR

OP
AL

AV
E

S MADISON DR

NE
W

W
AR

RI
NG

TON
SP

UR

STRE
G I S DR

NEW WARRINGTON

SPUR

RANDOLPH DR

WALTHAM ST

GA
RY

CIR

W
ES

TOVERAVE

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
SSA-2019-03

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not

LILLIAN HW Y

N 
49

TH
AV

E T

L ILLIAN HWY

VIADUCTLN

DO
MI

NG ST

STN A S

N 
Z 

ST

HO
LL

YW AV
E

W LEE ST

N 
Y 

ST

N 
KI

RK
ELSA AVE

LILLIAN
HW Y

MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

LOCATION MAP
Planning and Zoning Dept.

guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



MDR

MDR
MDR

MDR

Com

Com

MDR

Com

HC/LI

HDMU

HC/LI

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

 M
EX

IC
O 

DR

GEORGIA DR

W BOBE ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

EMERALD
AVE

IDAHO
CT

W
ISCONSIN

DR

AQUAMARINE
AV E

NEW
YORK

DR

CLOVERLAND CT

TENNES SEE DR

NEVADA CIR

W FAIRFIELD DR
NEW WARRINGTON SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2019-03
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

TENNESSEE DR

WYOMING ST

LOUISIANADR

KENTUCKY DR



MU-U

MU-U MU-U

C

C

MU-U

C

MU-U

MU-U

C

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

 M
EX

IC
O 

DR

GEORGIA DR

W BOBE ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

EMERALD
AVE

IDAHO
CT

W
ISCONSIN

DR

AQUAMARINE
AV E

NEW
YORK

DR

CLOVERLAND CT

TENNES SEE DR

NEVADA CIR

W FAIRFIELD DR
NEW WARRINGTON SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2019-03
EXISTING FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

TENNESSEE DR

WYOMING ST

LOUISIANADR

KENTUCKY DR



MU-U

MU-U MU-U

C

C

MU-U

C

MU-U

MU-U

C

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

 M
EX

IC
O 

DR

GEORGIA DR

W BOBE ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

EMERALD
AVE

IDAHO
CT

W
ISCONSIN

DR

AQUAMARINE
AV E

NEW
YORK

DR

CLOVERLAND CT

TENNES SEE DR

NEVADA CIR

W FAIRFIELD DR
NEW WARRINGTON SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2019-03
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

TENNESSEE DR

WYOMING ST

LOUISIANADR

KENTUCKY DR



W FAIRFIELD DR

WYOMING ST

LOUIS IANA
DR

FDOT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 50 100 150

Ft

SSA-2019-03
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



Public Hearing Sign on Site



Looking east onto site



Looking north along Louisiana Dr



Looking west across Louisiana Dr



Looking south along Louisiand Dr toward Fairfield Dr



Escambia County Development Services Dept.

3363 West Park Place,

Pensacola, Fl 32505

This is a request for a small scale FLU from C to MU-U

for the purposes of an ALF. Assisted Living Facility.

A10 bed ALF. Fl. Memory Lane LLC. Our small number

of residents makes it possible for us, caregivers to

provide a wide range of individual services working to

enhance each residents quality of life.

We offer 24 hours awake staff, 3 delicious meals daily

and snacks in between. We assist with bathing,

dressing, managing medication, laundry, cleaning,

daily activities, in home medical services.

Hoping for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Marie Cole Fisher

Administrator

Fl Memory Lane

108 Louisiana Dr.

Pensacola Fl. 32505



























ES04620

Esri, HERE, Garmin, © OpenStreetMap contributors, Copyright:©
2013 National Geographic Society, i-cubed,  Source: Esri,
DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Cultural Resource Search
500 Foot Buffer

Escambia County

October 2019

¯
0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.20.025

Miles

Legend
Parcel
152S3062000...

%2
Florida
Structures
Florida Sites

HistoricalBridges
Historical
Cemeteries
National Register

Resource
Groups

















































SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 1 of 7  

Comprehensive Plan 
Small-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment 

Staff Analysis 

General Data 

Project Name:  SSA-2019-03 
Location:  108 Louisiana Dr. 
Parcel #:  15-2S-30-6200-041-010 
Acreage:  0.42 acre± 

FLU Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) 
Applicant:  Marie Fisher, agent, Winsome Grounds LLC, owner 
Meeting Dates:  Planning Board, December 3, 2019 

 BCC, January 7, 2020 

Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of Escambia County 
proposes to change the FLU category of a 0.41 parcel from Commercial (C) to Mixed-
Use Urban (MU-U).  The parcel can be accessed along Louisiana Drive, off West 
Fairfield Drive.  
A FLU change to MU-U will allow residential development within the existing zoning 
district regardless of a primary commercial component as currently required by the 
existing Commercial FLU.  The existing and proposed future land use categories are 
described in Comprehensive Plan Policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  “Intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general 
business trade.  Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a 
primary commercial development.”  The range of allowable uses is “residential, retail 
and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and 
civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 
Mixed-Use Urban.  “Intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential 
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban 
and suburban land uses within the category as a whole.”  The range of allowable 
uses is “residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, 
recreational facilities, public and civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential 
density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 2.0. 

 



SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 2 of 7  

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 
Analysis The application cover letter states that the owner wishes to 
utilize the existing structure as an assisted living facility, which is 
defined as a residential use. The current structure has been utilized has 
a retirement home in the past, which is defined as a commercial use. 
Conversion to MU-U would eliminate the FLU dedication to commercial 
use and provide greater accommodation of residential uses within a 
mixed-use environment. 

The applicant provided no need-based justification for the residential 
use. 

The “Data and Analysis Response” in the application, the analysis 
refers to residential development. An assisted living facility is not a 
permitted use within the existing Commercial FLU of the subject parcel 
and if the requested MU-U FLU is approved, the density would be limited 
to 25 du/acre.   

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 
Analysis:  Accepting an assisted living facility, a residential use, as the 
identified need, the proposed amendment applies appropriate planning 
principles by suggesting a replacement FLU that is both consistent with 
the proposed use and the same as most adjoining and surrounding 
property. 



SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 3 of 7  

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 
Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all three conditions 
established by Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small-
scale comprehensive plan amendment:  

(a) The subject 0.41acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 
(b) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the 

Comprehensive Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future 
Land Use Map for a site-specific small-scale development activity. 

(c) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not 
within a designated area of critical state concern. 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 
1. Housing 

Policy HOU 1.1.1  Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 
Analysis:  The proposed MU-U is a suitable replacement of the existing 
Commercial future land use to accommodate the suggested residential 
development and is consistent with the FLU of the surrounding residential 
development. The proposed MU-U replacement of the existing Commercial 
FLU will allow site development to more easily achieve the maximum 
residential density and is the same FLU as an adjoining parcel and parcels in 
the surrounding area.  The existing Com zoning is primarily intended to 
“professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general business trade. 
Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a primary 
commercial development.” 

2. Future Land Use 
OBJ FLU 1.3  Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 



SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 4 of 7  

Analysis:  Mixed-Use Urban, the applicable FLU, would promote more mixed use 

and compact development for the subject parcel.  

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4  Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 
Analysis: The proposed MU-U is a suitable replacement of the existing 
Commercial future land use to accommodate the suggested residential 
development and is consistent with the FLU of the surrounding residential 
development. 

GOAL CMS 1  Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 

a. Potable Water.   
Policy INF 4.1.6  Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

b. Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11  Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 



SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 5 of 7  

ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

c. Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2  Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide 
and operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
solid waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 
 

Analysis:  Potable water, sanitary sewer, and solid waste disposal services 
are all available to the proposed use and documentation of these facilities 
and services are included in the application. 

d. Stormwater Management. 
Policy INF 3.1.5  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 
such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
Policy INF 3.1.6  Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 

e. Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2  On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7  Access Management.  Escambia County will promote 
access management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist 
experiences during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when 
they cannot be eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate 
traffic flow on affected roadways.  

 Analysis: Any redevelopment of the subject parcel is required to comply 
with the current stormwater management, onsite parking, site access, and 
other applicable development standards of the LDC. County compliance 
review of any redevelopment plan would be required prior to plan approval.  

4. Protected Resources.  It appears likely, especially given the limited impacted 
resources and unchanged HC/LI zoning, that the proposed FLU change will result in 



SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 6 of 7  

no greater adverse impacts to protected resources. 
a. Wellheads.   

Policy CON 1.4.1  Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 
and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 

     Analysis: The subject parcel is outside of any wellhead protection area. 

b. Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1  State Assistance.  Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 

Analysis: The applicant provided documentation of a referenced request 
made to Florida Master Site File, Division of Historical Resources stating 
there are no previously recorded cultural resources within the project area. 

c. Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2  Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 
 
Analysis: There are no indications from the available National Wetland 
Inventory map that wetlands are on the subject parcel. Any future 
development will be analyzed for compliance with all applicable 
environmental regulations prior to the issuance of development plan 
approval. 

d. Urban Forest. 



SSA-2019-03    Louisiana Dr 
 

Page 7 of 7  

Policy CON 1.6.4  Urban Forest Management.  Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted tree protection and landscaping 
provisions that implement this policy would be reviewed and confirmed 
prior to any site development plan approval, regardless of the proposed 
FLU change or use. 



3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: November 25, 2019 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – SSA-2019-03 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the SSA-2019-03, 108 Louisiana Drive (Com to MU-U), 
agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for December 3, 2019. Please 
see the below comments. 

 
Louisiana Drive is a tree lined residential roadway that is approximately 18 feet 

wide with a right-of-way of 66 feet.  The property at 108 Louisiana Drive is located 
approximately 205 feet north of Fairfield Drive.   

 
The County does not have any proposed improvement projects scheduled for 

Louisiana Drive.  In addition, FDOT does not have any construction scheduled.  
 
Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Fairfield 

Drive is classified as a principal arterial with a maximum LOS of D and a corresponding 
daily volume threshold of 39,800.  Near Louisiana Drive, the daily volume on Fairfield 
for 2018 was recorded as 22,500.  Louisiana Drive is classified as a local street and 
assumed to be functioning within its allowable capacity for traffic volumes. 

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Engineering Department Director 
 Allyson Lindsay, Development Services Department 



LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

r. , SSA-2019-03, LOUISIANA DRIVE
Document:

11/18/2019
Date:

Date requested back by: 11/23/2019

Caleb MacCartee
Requested by:

.  595-3473
Phone Number:

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by ^\(A 1^- CroK.flSd>A

Date Received:

Approved as to fonn and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

iiiiiitiiiiiiiii

Additional comments:



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2019-

2  AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II OF THE
3  ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY
4  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 7, "THE
5  FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT," POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN
6  AMENDMENT TO THE 2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE
7  LAND USE CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE
8  30W, PARCEL NUMBER 6200-041-010, TOTALING 0.41 ACRES+ LOCATED ON
9  LOUISIANA DRIVE, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED-USE URBAN (MU-U);
10 PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
11 INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

12 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted
13 its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and

14 WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County
15 Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce
16 comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and

17 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and
18 forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes
19 (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and

20 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that
21 the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;

22 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of
23 Escambia County, Florida, as follows:

24 Section 1. Purpose and Intent

25 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and to exercise the
26 authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215,
27 Florida Statutes.

28 Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment

29 This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled "Small Scale Amendment
30 2019-03."

PB; 09-03-19 Page 1
Re: SSA-2019-02

Draft 1



1  Section 3. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map

2  The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part ii of the
3  Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030,
4  as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations,
5  references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following
6  future land use changes:

7  A parcel within Section 15, Township 23, Range 30W, parcel number 6200-
8  041-010, totaling 0.41 acres±, located on Louisiana Drive, as more
9  particularly described in the Boundary and Topographic Survey description
10 produced by 360 Surveying Services, registered land surveyor Rob R.
11 Working, dated 2/5/19, attached as Exhibit A, changed from Commercial
12 (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).

13 Section 4. Severability

14 if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
15 unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect
16 the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

17 Section 5. Inciusion in the Code

18 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this
19 Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the
20 sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or
21 reiettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other
22 appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

23 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

PB: 09-03-19 Page 2
Re: SSA-2019-02

Draft 1



1  Section 6. Effective Date

2  This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State.

3  DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2019.

4

5

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

6

7

By:
Steven Barry, Chairman

10

11

ATTEST: RAM CHILDERS

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

By:
Deputy Clerk

Approved as to form and legal
sufficiency.

By/rUle:
Date:_fcZS35

12 (SEAL)

13 ENACTED:

14 FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

15 EFFECTIVE DATE:

PB : 09-03-19

Re: SSA-2019-02

Draft 1

Page 3





   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 12/03/2019  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter

7, Policy FLU 1.1.1, 2030 Future Land Use Map
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
 A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 7, Policy 1.1.1 to
Provide for an Amendment to the 2030 Future Land Use Map
That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
transmittal to DEO, an Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030
FLU map, for the specific parcel, requesting to change the existing FLUM designation
from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).

BACKGROUND:
The applicant is requesting a Future Land Use Map change from Commercial (C) to
Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) in order to obtain an increase in residential development.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Comprehensive Plan will  be filed with the Department of



This Ordinance, amending the Comprehensive Plan will  be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the Board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the Future Land Use
Map and distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Working case file
Draft Ordinance



 
 
 
 
 

LSA-2019-05 
 

 



P I
N E

FO
RE

ST
R D

RABURN RD

PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T R

D

N
BL

UE ANGEL PKW Y

GODWIN LN

BU
RN

HI
LL

CI
R

BROW
NFIELD RD

COPE LN

FRANCISCANDR

NATURE
LN

DUNAW AY LN

CO
MM

UN
IT

Y
DR

FL
IN

TL
OC

K
DR

L EPLEY RD

BANKHEAD DR

GL
EN

W
AY

DR

DE
VI

N
CI

R

MYSTIC
LN

TIPPY

REDD LN

TAMPA
DR

LO
CK

HA
RT

ST

URSULALN

KYLE

DR

SYLVANCT

ANN AN
DA

LE
DR

FO
ST

ER
 ST

MA
RC

US
PO

IN
TE

BL
VD

SL
AS

H
P I

NE
RD

GO
NZ

O
RD

LO
NG

LE
AF

CR
E E

K
DR

CH
I C

AG
O

AV
E

PA
W

NE
E

DR

OAKSTREAMAVE

C ED AR

R IDGE DR
NO

KO
MI

S
ST

HOLLYHILL RD

INDA AVE

CANTERROW

CROW S ON RD
TI

LL
MA

N
CI

R

FL
OY

D
D R

EI
GH

T
M

IL
E

CR
EE

K
RD

KL
ON

DI
KE

 R
D

BE
LG

IU
M 

RD

FRIDINGER D R

ODELL
LN

YO
SH

I D
A

ST

TO
NT

O 
ST

AMOS
CIR

LU
DLOW

ST

HILLCREST
AVE

PORT ST.
JOE ST

BRID

GE
T

LN

TANNEH ILLDR

LI
LL

IE
L N

BREWER DR

BE
LL

VI
EW

P I
NE

S
RD

SCOT

TS PL

RICKWOOD DR

MANDEVILLE
LN

JARADA AVE

GU
NT

ER
 R

D

BE
LG

IU
M 

RD
SH

EN
AN

DO
AH

RD

NANDO RA
AVE

PI
NE

FO
RE

S T
RD

AM ELIA LN

PINE
FOREST

R D

AD
DI

E
GA

NT
 LN

PA
CK

ER
PK

WY

DA
NN

Y
W

AY
W

YM
AR

T R
D

HILLCREST
AVEGREEN

BAY AVE

TILLMAN LN BELGIUM CIR

GODWIN LN

MIDLANDPARK DR

HUNTSVILL E
AVE

PURSELL LN

MOBILE HWY

DU
NW

AL
T R

D

FARRIS AVE

LONGLEAF DR

MI
LL

VI
EW

 R
D

HE
LT

ON
LN

INTERSTATE 10

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,400 2,800 4,200

Ft

LSA-2019-05
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



MDR Com

MDR

MDR

MDR

HDMU
Com

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI-NA

Pub

MDR

MDR

Com Com

HDMU

MDR

COPE LN

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE
 R

D

L O
NG

LE
AF

CR
EE

K
DR

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
R D

GREENVALLEY DR

NA
TH

AN
 R

D

MANDEVILLE LN

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
RD

P A
CK

E R
PK

W
Y

TILLMAN LN

PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

LSA-2019-05
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



MU-U
MU-U

C

MU-U

P
C

CCMU-U

MU-U

MU-U
C

MU-U
COPE LN

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE
 R

D

L O
NG

LE
AF

CR
EE

K
DR

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
R D

GREENVALLEY DR

NA
TH

AN
 R

D

MANDEVILLE LN

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
RD

P A
CK

E R
PK

W
Y

TILLMAN LN

PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

LSA-2019-05
EXISTING FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



MU-U
MU-U

C

MU-U

P
C

CCMU-U

MU-U

MU-U
MU-U

MU-U
COPE LN

SL
AS

H 
PI

NE
 R

D

L O
NG

LE
AF

CR
EE

K
DR

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
R D

GREENVALLEY DR

NA
TH

AN
 R

D

MANDEVILLE LN

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
RD

P A
CK

E R
PK

W
Y

TILLMAN LN

PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T R

D

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 400 800 1,200

Ft

LSA-2019-05
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer



COPE LN

PI
NE

 F
OR

ES
T R

D

LO
NG

LE
AF

 C
RE

EK
 D

R

MANDEVILLE LN

NA
TH

AN
 R

D

P I
NE

F O
RE

S T
RD

FDOT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

LSA-2019-05
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

PI
NE

FO
RE

ST
RD



Public Hearing Sign



Looking south from 
northern parcel



Looking north from 
subject parcel



Looking onto corner 
parcel to the north



Another view into 
the southern parcel



Looking east across 
Pine Forrest Rd



Looking southeast 
across Pine Forest Rd



Looking east across 
Pine Forest Rd from 
another point on the 
parcel



Looking south from 
southern most part 
of parcel



Looking west 
onto subject 
parcel



Looking at 7055 
Pine Forest Rd



Looking toward 
corner parcel



Letter of Request

We are requesting the Future Land Use (FLU) Amendment for these two parcels on Pine Forest
in orderto development residential properties. Currently, the present zonings under the current
FLU ofCommercial do not allow any residential uses outside ofa predominately commercial
development. Therefore, we are proposing a FLU Amendment to change the two parcels to FLU
MU-U, which allows residential development without any such restriction.





























































Comprehensive Plan  
Large-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 

2030 FLU map. 
Location:  7045 & 7055 Pine Forest Road   
 
Parcel #s:  24-1S-31-4230-000-020, 24-1S-31-3140-000-000 
       
Acreage:  10.28 (+/-) acres, 3.66 (+/-) acres. 
Request:  Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).    
Agent:  Chris Thompson, Agent for Eric Gleaton, Owner 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board, December 5, 2019 
   BCC January 7, 2019 (Transmittal) 
 

Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The area includes parcels 24-1S-31-4230-000-020, 24-1S-31-3140-000-000, located on 
Pine Forest road just north of Blue Angel Parkway. 

Mixed-Use Urban.  “Intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential 
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban 
and suburban land uses within the category as a whole.”  The range of allowable 
uses is “residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, 
recreational facilities, public and civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential 
density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 2.0. 
Commercial. “Intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and 
general business trade. Residential development may be permitted only if 
secondary to a primary commercial development.” “Range of Allowable Uses: 
Residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational 
facilities, public and civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 
du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 

Analysis of Availability of Facilities and Services:  
The availability of public facilities and services for the site of a Future Land Use map 
amendment requires analysis of the general demands of its proposed use.  All specific 
level of service (LOS) standards established by Escambia County are evaluated for 
compliance during the review processes prescribed by the LDC for approval of 
proposed development. 

 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 2 of 6 

Sanitary Sewer Service. 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day.  For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

CP Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures intended 
for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless ECUA has 
determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the proposed 
structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the appropriate 
permit from the Health Department. 

Analysis: The subject property is within the service area of the Emerald Coast Utility 
Authority (ECUA) for sanitary sewer.  The applicant provided a letter from ECUA stating 
services for water and sanitation are provided by ECUA.  Any new proposed 
development will have a complete reviewed during the Development Review Process. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
CP Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal 
needs of the entire County. 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis: Escambia County continues to maintain its adopted solid waste LOS 
commitments.  The Department of Waste Services reported in its 2018 solid waste 
LOS analysis that the current build-out for disposal at the Perdido Landfill will provide 
solid waste disposal capacity through 2045. 

Potable Water Service.   
CP Policy INF 4.1.4 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of potable water facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities but no 
later than the certificate of occupancy, as created by development or redevelopment 
through the implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer unless 
otherwise funded by the service provider. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for potable 
water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential connection per 
day.  For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service provider at the time of 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 3 of 6 

application.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure 
that adequate capacity is available. 

Analysis: Based on Escambia County Property Appraiser records, the parcels are 
within the service area of ECUA for potable water and meets the adopted level of 
services standards in the Comprehensive Plan. Any new proposed development will 
have a complete review during the Development Review Process. 

Stormwater Management. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Stormwater management 
LOS will be monitored through the provisions in the LDC design standards.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted stormwater management provisions that implement 
these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site development plan 
approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use. 

Streets and Access.   
CP Policy MOB 1.1.1 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC.  The standards for SIS facilities may be revised based 
on changes to the federal classification of these roadways.  These standards are not 
regulatory but provide a basis by which the County may monitor congestion and 
coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 
Analysis: The parcel fronts Pine Forest Road, which is a FDOT road, classified as an 
arterial roadway.  Any new development will have to submit an application for 
Development Review Process.  
Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – LSA-2019-05 

TTO Staff has reviewed the LSA-2019-05 7045 & 7055 Pine Forest Road (C to MU-U), 
agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for December 3, 2019. Please see the 
below comments. 

 
Pine Forest Road is a four-lane divided roadway with a right-of-way of 100 feet.  The 

County does not have any proposed improvement projects scheduled for Pine Forest Road in 
this area.  In addition, FDOT does not have any construction scheduled.  

 
Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Pine 

Forest Road is classified as a minor arterial with a maximum LOS of D and a 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 4 of 6 

corresponding daily volume threshold of 39,800.  Near Louisiana Drive, the daily volume 
on Pine Forest Road for 2018 was recorded as 32,000.   

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the comments 

above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development Review process. 
  

Public School Facilities.   
CP Policy ICE 1.3.1 Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning.  In 
cooperation with the School Board and the local governments within Escambia County, 
the County will implement the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning 
(herein Interlocal Agreement) that establishes procedures for coordination and sharing 
of information, planning processes, and  implementation. 
Analysis: Based on the public records of Escambia County, the assigned schools that 
service this area are: Beulah Elementary, Beulah Middle, and Pine Forest High.  An 
increase of residential dwellings may influence student population projections, requiring 
the plan to be reviewed and approved through the Site Plan Review process. 
Analysis of Suitability of Amendment for Proposed Use: 
The suitability of a Future Land Use map amendment for its proposed use requires an 
analysis of the characteristics of the site and its resources relative to Comprehensive 
Plan (CP) goals, objectives, and policies.  For these purposes, suitability is the degree 
to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and water are compatible 
with the proposed use or development.  Compliance with specific regulations and 
standards established by Escambia County, including those for public facilities and 
services, are evaluated during the development review processes prescribed by the 
LDC for approval of proposed development. 

Impact on Land Use. 
CP Policy FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  General descriptions, range of 
allowable uses, and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land 
use categories in Escambia County are outlined in Table 1 [of the Escambia County 
Comprehensive Plan].  
Analysis:  
Approval of the amendment would allow for the proposed Future Land Use to be 
consistent with the existing zoning and allow more residential density which will be 
compatible with the surrounding residential uses.  

Impact on Wellheads. 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection.  Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future 
public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas 
and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within 
those areas. 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 5 of 6 

Analysis: Based on the GIS wellhead protection areas layer, there are wellhead 
protection areas to the north of this site, however, this property is not located in a 
wellhead protection area, and will not impact the wellhead area.  Any new development 
will have to submit for Development Review Process.   
Impact on Historically Significant Sites. 
 
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 
Analysis: A letter from the Historical Resources was provided which states no historical 
resources were found to be on site. At the time of development review if any historic or 
archeological resources or structures are discovered, the county will request the 
appropriate guidance, direction and technical assistance from the State. 

Impact on the Natural Environment. 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 
Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
CP Policy CON 1.1.6 Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.1 Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect surface 
water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the Infrastructure 
Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and ensure the provision 
of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6 Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands will 
not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 
development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC: 
CP Policy CON 1.6.3 Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 
Analysis: The proposed FLU amendment will not have an impact beyond existing 
development at this time.  Any natural resource issues will be appropriately addressed 
at the county Development Review process at the time of development. Any proposed 
development will be reviewed for impacts on the natural resources during the Site Plan 
Review process. 

 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 6 of 6 

Urban Sprawl 
CP Objective FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations.  Designate land uses on 
the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact development in 
urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection and preservation 
of rural areas.” 
Analysis: The proposed FLU amendment would promote mixed uses in the urban 
areas, with compatible infill development.   
 
CP Policy FLU 2.2.1 Location. Public facilities and services will be located to minimize 
their cost and negative impacts on the natural environment and maximize their 
efficiency. Cost alternatives, impacts on the environment, and levels of efficiency will be 
discussed during the design phase and bid process utilized by the County to accomplish 
the installation or location of public facilities and/or services. In addition, the County will 
coordinate with the ECUA, other water and/or sewer providers, and state or federal 
agencies with facilities located in the County or with plans to expand existing facilities or 
create new facilities in the County. Among other things, it is the intent of this policy that 
public facilities and services are available to support the densities and intensities of 
uses provided by this Plan and the FLUM and that there is adequate and suitable land 
available for such utility facilities. 
 
CP Policy FLU 2.2.4 Existing Facilities. Prior to embarking on the construction of new 
capital improvements, Escambia County will consider the feasibility of upgrading or 
rehabilitating existing facilities to determine if the rehabilitation of present facilities would 
be in the best interest of the County and its citizens. 
 
Analysis: There are multiple residential and commercial developments along Pine 
Forest Rd.  Any new proposed project will be required to meet the current regulations, 
as it relates to the availability of public services to support the requested densities and 
intensities.  
 



3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 
Development Services Department 

 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: November 25, 2019 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – LSA-2019-05 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the LSA-2019-05, 7045 & 7055 Pine Forest Road (C to 
MU-U), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for December 3, 2019. 
Please see the below comments. 

 
Pine Forest Road is a four-lane divided roadway with a right-of-way of 100 feet.  

The County does not have any proposed improvement projects scheduled for Pine 
Forest Road in this area.  In addition, FDOT does not have any construction scheduled.  

 
Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Pine 

Forest Road is classified as a minor arterial with a maximum LOS of D and a 
corresponding daily volume threshold of 39,800.  Near Louisiana Drive, the daily volume 
on Pine Forest Road for 2018 was recorded as 32,000.   

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

  
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Jones, P.E., Engineering Department Director 
 Allyson Lindsay, Development Services Department 



LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Document: LSA Ordinance 2019-05

Date: ''1-22-19

Date requested back by:

Allyson Cain
Requested by:

Phone Number:

iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Kla M. Johnson
Legal Review by

Date Received:

y
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



1 ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-
2

3 AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING
4 PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE
5 ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED;
6 AMENDING CHAPTER 7, "THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,"
7 POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2030
8 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE
9 CATEGORY OF A PARCEL, WHICH IS LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 24,

10 TOWNSHIP IS, RANGE 31W, AND WHICH IS IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL
11 ID NUMBER 24-1S-31-4230-000-020 TOTALING 10.28(+/-) ACRES,
12 LOCATED ON PINE FOREST ROAD, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO
13 MIXED USE URBAN (MU-U); CHANGING A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION
14 24, TOWNSHIP IS, RANGE 31W, AND WHICH IS IDENTIFIED AS
15 PARCEL ID NUMBER 24-1 S-31-3140-000-000 TOTALING 3.66(+/-)
16 ACRES, LOCATED ON PINE FOREST ROAD, FROM COMMERCIAL (C)
17 TO MIXED USE URBAN (MU-U); PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING
18 FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE;
19 AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
20

21 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part 11, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted
22 its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and
23

24 WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County
25 Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce
26 comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and
27

28 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and
29 forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes
30 (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and
31

32 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that
33 the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;
34

35 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of
36 Escambia County, Florida, as follows:
37

38 Section 1. Purpose and Intent
39

40 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the
41 authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215,
42 Florida Statutes.

43

44 Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment

PB: 12-03-19

BCC: 1-07-20

Re: LSA-2019-05 1



1

2 This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled - "Large Scale Amendment 2019-
3 05."

4

5 Section 3. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map
6

7 The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the
8 Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030,
9 as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations,

10 references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following
11 future land use changes:
12

13 (A)A parcel of land which is located within Section 24, Township IS, Range
14 31W, parcel number 24-1S-31-4230-000-020 and totaling 10.28 (+/-) acres,
15 located on Pine Forest Road, as more particularly described in the
16 Boundary Survey produced by Gary Rutan, a registered land surveyor with
17 McKim and Creed, dated 11/21/2019, attached as Exhibit A, from
18 Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).
19

20 (B) A parcel of land which is located within Section 24, Township IS, Range
21 31W, parcel number 24-1S-31-3140-000-000 and totaling 3.66 (+/-) acres,
22 located at Pine Forest Road, as more particularly described in the Boundary
23 Survey produced by Gary Rutan, a registered land surveyor with McKim
24 and Creed, dated 11/21/2019, attached as Exhibit A, from Commercial (C)
25 to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).
26

27 Section 4. Severabllity
28

29 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
30 unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect
31 the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.
32

33 Section 5. inclusion in the Code

34

35 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this
36 Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the
37 sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or
38 relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other
39 appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.
40

41

42

43

PB: 12-03-19

BCC: 1-07-20

Re: LSA-2019-05 2



2 Section 6. Effective Date

3

4 Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c){4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become
5 effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia
6 County that the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this
7 Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or
8 the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in
9 compliance.

10

11 DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2020.
12

13 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

14 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. FLORIDA
15

16

17 By:
18 Steven Barry, Chairman
19

20 ATTEST: PAMCHILDERS

21 CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

22

23

24 By:
25

This document approved as to form
and legal sufficiency^
By —

Deputy Clerk Title Ass-i-. LouArFv
26 (SEAL) Date
27

28

29 ENACTED:

30 FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

31 EFFECTIVE DATE:

PB: 12-03-19

BCC: 1-07-20

Re: LSA-2019-05










	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_November 5, 2019 Draft Rezoning Planning Board Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER 2019

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map_ SSA-2019-03
	Att1_Working Case File
	SSA-2019-03
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Existing FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Data and Analysis
	Email from ECUA
	Florida Master Site File Search
	Site Plan
	Articles of Organization of FL Memory Lane LLC
	Boundary Survey
	Information Submitted by Applicant
	Staff Analysis
	TTO Comments

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 7, Policy FLU 1.1.1, 2030 Future Land Use Map
	Att1_Working case file
	LSA-2019-05
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Existing FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Quit Claim Deed
	Warranty Deed
	Maps Submitted by Applicant
	Legal Description
	Boundary Survey
	Data and Analysis
	ECUA Letter
	Gulf Power Letter
	FL Master Site File
	Staff Analysis
	TTO Comments

	Att2_Draft Ordinance

